
South Hams Council

Title: Agenda
Date: Thursday, 10th September, 2015

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber - Follaton House

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Bramble
Vice Chairman Cllr Smerdon

Members: Cllr Baldry
Cllr Barnes
Cllr Bastone
Cllr Blackler
Cllr Brazil
Cllr Brown
Cllr Cane
Cllr Cuthbert
Cllr Foss
Cllr Gilbert
Cllr Hawkins
Cllr Hicks
Cllr Hitchins
Cllr Hodgson
Cllr Holway

Cllr Horsburgh
Cllr May
Cllr Pearce
Cllr Pennington
Cllr Pringle
Cllr Rowe
Cllr Saltern
Cllr Steer
Cllr Tucker
Cllr Vint
Cllr Ward
Cllr Wingate
Cllr Wright

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Member.Services@swdevon.gov.uk



Page No

1.  Urgent Business

the Chairman to announce if any item not on the agenda should 
be considered on the basis that he considers it as a matter of 
urgency (any such item to be dealt with under ‘Business Brought 
forward by the Chairman’);

2.  Exempt Information

to consider whether the consideration of any item of business 
would be likely to disclose exempt information and if so the 
category of such exempt information;

3.  Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal; or disclosable 
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such 
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this 
meeting;

4.  Planning Obligations Thresholds 1 - 78

to consider a report that seeks to revoke the interim planning 
obligations decision that were agreed at full Council on 12 
February 2015;

5.  Introduction of a Discretionary Local Business Rate Relief 
Discount Policy

79 - 90

to consider a report that recommends that the Council utilises its 
powers to apply discretionary business rate relief



Report to: Special Council  

Date: 10 September 2015 

Title: Planning Obligations Thresholds 

Portfolio Area: Customer First 

 

Wards Affected: All 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: 

 

Urgent Decision: Y  Approval and 

clearance obtained: 

Y  

Date next steps can be taken: 

(e.g. referral on of recommendation or 
implementation of substantive decision) 

 

  

Author: Alex Rehaag Role: Place & Strategy Specialist 

Contact: arehaag@westdevon.gov.uk 01822 813722 

 

 
 

 

 

Recommendations:   

1. Members agree to revoke the interim planning obligations decision 
agreed at full Council on 12th February 2015 

2.Members agree that in order to keep the council’s policy in line with any 
further changes to government guidance by way of appeal or changes to 

the statutory framework, to adopt the additional ‘reversion clause’. 

 

 
 
1. Executive summary  

 

On the 28th November 2014 the government announced changes to 

national planning policy with regard to affordable housing thresholds and 
other tariff style contributions such as open space.  This resulted in the 

authority being unable to collect commuted sums or on site provision 
where 10 units or less of housing was proposed.  A Lower threshold of 6 
units or more could be implemented for authorities whose boundaries 

covered Designated Rural Areas, National Parks and Areas of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty (AONB).  

 



At the full council meeting on the 12th February 2015 the proposal to 
adopt and implement the lower threshold of 6 or 10 units was agreed. 

(Report attached at Appendix A) 
 

Subsequently on the 31st July 2015 the government’s decision to 
implement the change in policy was quashed by the High Court.  This 
followed a successful legal challenge by Reading and West Berkshire 

Councils.  South Hams District Council provided letters of support to 
Reading and West Berks in their legal challenge.  This resulted in 

paragraphs 012-023 of the guidance on planning obligations being 
removed.  The Judgement is available under R (on the application of West 
Berkshire District Council and Reading Borough Council) v Secretary of 

State for Communities and Local Government [2015] EWHC 2222 (Admin) 
(Appendix B refers). 

 
We are therefore seeking to revoke the interim policy which members 
adopted on 12th February 2015 and to revert back to the 2 to 10 

Affordable Housing threshold.  This will allow South Hams District Council 
to collect contributions on 2 units or more dependent on viability.  This 

was initially adopted in the affordable housing SPD (September 2008). 
 

It is unclear whether further changes around tariff style contributions will 
be re-introduced in the future.  The government could decide to appeal 
the West Berks decision or reintroduce by new statutory provisions at a 

later stage.  If the government restore the 6 or 10 unit thresholds the 
Council may prefer to re-implement the Members decision of the 12th 

February 2015 immediately to avoid delays in re-presenting reports to 
members and updating the policy again.  
 

The loss of onsite units and commuted sums in our rural areas could 
jeopardise delivery of affordable housing and other community benefits if 

the proposal to reinstate the previous threshold of 2 units or more is not 
agreed by members. 
 

2. Background  
 

1) What’s the issue? 
 
On the 28th November 2014 the government issued a ministerial 

statement with regard to planning obligations.  It stated that tariff style 
obligations could not be sought on small scale developments of 10 units or 

less.  The NPPG was updated to reflect this. 
 
There were exceptions to the over 10 threshold if the authority falls within 

a Designated Rural Area, Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty or a National 
Park. If an authority chose to, it could adopt a lower threshold of 6 units 

or more.  In South Hams the lower threshold could be applied everywhere 
except Dartmouth, Totnes, Ivybridge and Kingsbridge unless any of the 
main towns had areas which fell within an AONB.    

 
The Authority additionally could ask for contributions where the floor 

space of the proposed development exceeded 1000m2. 



 
Members adopted the lower threshold of 6 or 10 units or more on the 12th 

February 2015 which meant that contributions to affordable housing and 
sport and recreation could be made where developments on a scale of 6 

units or more were proposed, or more than 10 units in the non-rural 
areas. 
 

 
2)Why does the Council need to take action and why now? 

 
The grant regime for affordable housing has reduced significantly over the 
last few years. The Section 106 contributions for affordable housing that 

we previously collected from developers are used to help to deliver 
affordable housing in the absence of public sector funding.  One example 

of this is a small brown field site in Thurlestone.  The development 
enabled the Council to provide much needed affordable homes for local 
people.  The affordable homes have all been built to Level 5 of the Code 

for Sustainable Homes which means residents benefit from low running 
costs.  This development won the Best Rural Development award in the 

2014 Devon Rural Development Awards.  Schemes such as this would not 
be feasible without financial support from the local authority 

 
Dartmoor National Park Authority agreed to rescind their interim policy 
which was implemented by their members on the 9th January to ensure 

that they had the ability to meet affordable housing need within their 
area.  Cornwall Council has also reverted to their previous policy.  A 

number of other rural councils have and will be considering this to ensure 
delivery of affordable housing. 
 

 
How does this fit in with national or Council policy/priorities? Who 

does the issue affect (communities, services, partners etc)? 
 
The NPPG has removed paragraphs 0012 – 0023 and therefore members 

are able to revert to the previously policy in the Affordable Housing 
Supplementary Planning Document.   

The Council has a corporate priority to deliver homes including much 
needed affordable housing for those applicants that are currently on the 
Devon Home Choice register.   

 
If we do not revert to the previous policy our communities and partners 

are missing out on affordable housing within their area.  There is an acute 
need for affordable housing throughout the district. The changes to the 
grant regime have resulted in these contributions being invaluable in 

order to deliver projects. 
  

 
3. Outcomes/outputs  
 

It is hoped that rescinding the decision by members in February 2015 will 
be implemented immediately as per the removal of the paragraphs 

contained in the NPPG and contributions can then be sought.   



 
The contributions are monitored by the Place & Strategy Community of 

Practice and a capital programme is agreed by members in order to 
allocate funds to specific housing projects. 

 
There is an acute shortage of affordable housing across the UK, and South 
Hams is no different.  By revoking the policy and returning to the 2 unit 

threshold we will be able to see outcomes as we have seen in Blackawton 
where 10 units of housing were proposed which included 5 much needed 

affordable homes.  This will help to address the needs of our rural 
communities. 
 

Providing timescales for members to see results will be difficult as this is 
dependent on planning applications being approved, the properties being 

developed, projects identified and the money being paid to the council.  
Regular reports on the amount of commuted sums held can be provided. 
 

4. Options available and consideration of risk  
 

1. We could continue with the threshold of 6 or 10 units or more but 
would potentially lose contributions over a period of time. Whilst 

the lower threshold has been used SHDC has only managed to 
secure £23,000.00 

 

We could revert back to the initial policy and collect on 2 units plus 
to assist.  Contributions currently collected and held in the bank in 

South Hams from the previous policy is £538,238.40. It is 
important to note that money has previously been committed and 
spent in the past to support projects and this is just what is held in 

funds at present.  These projects have been reported to members 
through the housing capital programme at Executive committee. 

 
2. There is always a risk that developers/agents/householders may 

submit an application to try to circumvent policy in avoiding 

payment of contributions.  However this is addressed in the 
planning process. 

 
3. The government may ask for leave to appeal this decision although 

the information acquired so far does not seem to substantiate this.  

The higher thresholds may be reintroduced in the future and 
therefore officers are asking members to agree that the 6 to 10 unit 

policy can be reintroduced if this is still fit for purpose without re-
presenting this to full council committee. 
 

 
4. Consultation is not required as this is simply revoking the interim 

policy stance of the 12th February 2015 to revert to an agreed 
policy which was subject to a consultation process prior to adoption. 

 

 
 

 



5. Proposed Way Forward  
 

Members agree to rescind the decision of the 12th February and to agree 
that the threshold of 2 units or more is reintroduced.  This fits with South 

Hams adopted policies and the corporate priority to deliver homes 
including affordable housing for applicants in the district who are on the 
Devon Home Choice Register. 

 
To agree that, if the government formally introduce a higher affordable 

housing threshold the Council will revert automatically to its 6 to 10 unit 
threshold policies  to avoid future delays in waiting for an appropriate 
committee to revert to a previously approved policy. 

 
6. Implications  

 

Implications 

, 

Relevant  

to  
proposals  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

 
 
 

 

Legal/Governance 

 

Y The legal implications are set out in detail 

throughout the report but are particularly detailed 
in Sections 1 and 2.  Legal advice has been sought 

throughout and when drafting this report. 
 
 

Financial 
 

Y The financial position and risks are highlighted 
throughout the report in particular in section 4 

where the risk and amount of contributions 
potentially not collecting is discussed. 

 

Risk  The risks are detailed throughout the report but 

particular reference can be made to section 4. 
 
Discussions have taken place with SLT and Legal 

with regard to the risks and they have been 
captured throughout the report. 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
 

Equality and 
Diversity 

 

N No issues identified   

Safeguarding 

 

N No issues identified.   

Community 

Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 
 

None No issues identified 

 

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

None Maximise housing available to meet need. 

Other None  



implications None. 

 
 

 
Supporting Information 
 

Appendices: 
 

Only include appendices if the information is needed to make the decision 
but cannot be put within the report, such as a strategic plan or corporate 
policy. 

 
 

Background Papers: 
 
Planning Obligations Thresholds of 12th February 2015 

Reading and West Berkshire Judgement 
 

[under provisions of the Local Government Act 1972] 
 
List any background papers used to prepare your report or say none.  You 

do not have to include anything that is already publicly available online or 
in hard copy.  Do not include reference to material that is exempt or 

confidential within the meanings given in the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules. 
 

Approval and clearance of report 
 

All reports must have Finance Service clearance and Legal Service 
clearance.  Your report will only receive clearance if the implications in 
Section 6 are considered by the Finance and Legal Services to be 

complete and accurate.  Make sure you contact the Finance Service and 
the Legal Service early on for advice where there are potentially financial 

or legal implications.  If there are other resource implications you must 
forward your report to the appropriate officer for clearance.  If those 

clearing the report make amendments they will advise you of that fact 
and refer you to the relevant changes.  As report author you are 
responsible for finalising the report and its content but you are required to 

have regard to the comments of the Finance and Legal Services and clear 
reasons for not following their advice.   

 
 

Process checklist Completed 

Portfolio Holder briefed  Yes/No 

SLT Rep briefed Yes/No 

Relevant  Exec Director sign off (draft) Yes/No 

Data protection issues considered Yes/No 

If exempt information, public (part 1) report 

also drafted. (Committee/Scrutiny) 

Yes/No 

 



 
SOUTH HAMS COUNCIL  

 
 

 
NAME OF COMMITTEE  
 

Council  

DATE 
 

12  February 2015   

REPORT TITLE 
 

Planning Obligations Thresholds   

Report of  
 

Affordable Housing Manager and Natural 
Environment and Recreation Manager and 
Development Control Manager 

WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All  

 
 
 
Summary of report: 
 
This report responds to a change in government policy on the use of S.106 obligations 
introduced through a Ministerial Statement published on the 28th of November 2014. 
The policy states that affordable housing and tariff-style contributions should not be 
sought on developments of 10 houses or less. A lower threshold of five units or less 
may be adopted by certain Local Planning authorities; however, only off site commuted 
sum financial contributions may be sought on schemes of 6-10 units. Exception sites 
are not affected by the change. 
 
In response to this new policy, it is proposed that the Council adopts an interim planning 
contributions threshold consistent with the Ministerial statement and updated National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). This interim threshold will be reviewed prior to the 
submission of the new Local Plan (Our Plan).  
 
Financial Implications 
 
Implications include the potential loss of financial contributions from previously 
approved planning applications together with a loss of contributions from future planning 
applications which fall below the proposed new thresholds.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Council resolves that;  
 

I. The following thresholds for affordable housing are adopted in respect of new 
applications for planning permission;   

 
a) In Dartmouth, Ivybridge, Kingsbridge and Totnes (the towns), the Council 

will seek ‘on site’ provision of affordable housing on developments of 11 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

 



units or more unless the site lies within an Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB).   
 

b) In the rural areas of the South Hams and Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB), the Council will seek a financial contribution from 
developments of between 6 – 10 units and ‘on site’ provision of affordable 
housing on developments off 11 units or more.    

 
II. The following thresholds for tariff - style infrastructure are adopted in respect 

of new applications for planning permission;   
 

a) In Dartmouth, Ivybridge, Kingsbridge and Totnes (the towns), the Council 
will seek contributions on developments of 11 units or more unless the 
site lies within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).   
 

b) In the rural areas of the South Hams and Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB), the Council will seek a financial contribution from 
developments of 6 – 10 units    

 
III. The interim threshold will be reviewed prior to the submission of the new 

Local Plan.  
 
Officer contact:  
Liam Reading – Affordable Housing Manager.  Liam.reading@southhams.gov.uk  
Tel: (01803) 861306 
 
Malcolm Elliott – Development Manager – Malcolm.elliott@swdevon.gov.uk 
Tel: (01803) 861442 
 
Ross Kennerley – Natural Environment and Recreation  Manager.    
ross.kennerley@swdevon.gov.uk      (01803) 861379 
 
 
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for new thresholds for Affordable 

Housing and other s.106 “tariff style” contributions consistent with updated 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).    The other s.106 contributions 
that are considered to be “tariff style” may include certain  contributions aimed at 
securing infrastructure improvements District wide. 

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 

Current Affordable Housing Policy  
 
2.1 The Council adopted the Affordable Housing Development Plan Document (AH-

DPD) in 2008. The document established the Council’s planning policy for 
affordable housing including targets and thresholds above which affordable 
housing would be sought.  The relevant policies of the AH-DPD are AH1 and 
AH3 which are set out below.  



 
 

AH1: Affordable Housing Provision 
 

 All new housing schemes for 2 or more dwellings, including those on a mixed use 
basis, will be expected to contribute towards meeting the affordable housing 
needs of the District. The capacity of the site and the viability of the development, 
including the availability of any housing grant or other subsidy, will be assessed 
for the contribution each scheme should make. On-site provision will be expected 
for sites with the capacity for 6 or more dwellings.  

 
In schemes falling short of the targets/thresholds specified in policies AH2 and 
AH3, the onus will be on applicants to clearly demonstrate the circumstances 
justifying a lower affordable housing contribution. 
 
AH3: Unallocated Sites 
 

 On unallocated sites, a sliding scale will be used to calculate affordable housing 
provision or contribution, as follows:  

 
• capacity for 2 to 5 dwellings 20% (off site) 
• capacity for 6 to 14 dwellings 35% (on site) 
• capacity for 15 or more dwellings 50% (on site) 

 
2.2 Since the introduction of the AH-DPD, the Council has sought both ’on site’ and 

‘off site’ affordable housing provision consistent with the policy.  
 
Current Open Space, Sport and Recreation Policy  

 
2.3 The Council’s adopted policy position on requiring Open Space, Sport and 

Recreation is set out in the Development Plan DPD – Policy DP8.  This is 
supplemented by details contained in the adopted SPD on “Open Space, Sport 
and Recreation”.   The key policy background is - 

 
DP 8: Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
 
Public open space, sport and recreation facilities will be provided where new 
development consists of 2 or more dwellings, or 1,000m2 or more of retail, 
commercial or service development. Where possible, facilities should be 
provided on-site, as an integral part of the development scheme. However, 
where on-site provision is not appropriate, off-site provision, or a financial 
contribution towards it, will be sought with a financial contribution commensurate 
with supply of facilities to serve the development. 

 
 The New National Threshold  
 
2.4 On the 28th November 2014, the Government announced the introduction of a 

new national 10-unit threshold for affordable housing and other s.106 
contributions. This policy was first muted in the 2013 Autumn Statement and 
subsequently consulted upon in March 2014.  

 



 
 
2.5 The policy was introduced through a Ministerial Statement and amendments to 

the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) which supplements the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The updated section of the NPPG 
entitled “Planning Obligations” states that;  
 

 There are specific circumstances where contributions for affordable housing and 
tariff style planning obligations (section 106 planning obligations) should not be 
sought from small scale and self-build development. 
 
• contributions should not be sought from developments of 10-units or less, and 

which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more than 1000sqm 
 
• in designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to apply a 

lower threshold of 5-units or less. No affordable housing or tariff-style 
contributions should then be sought from these developments. In addition, in a 
rural area where the lower 5-unit or less threshold is applied, affordable 
housing and tariff style contributions should be sought from developments of 
between 6 and 10-units in the form of cash payments which are commuted 
until after completion of units within the development. This applies to rural 
areas described under section 157(1) of the Housing Act 1985, which includes 
National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 
• affordable housing and tariff-style contributions should not be sought from any 

development consisting only of the construction of a residential annex or 
extension to an existing home 

 
2.6 The guidance states that contributions should not be sought from developments 

of 10 units or less.  It does however allow for a lower threshold to be introduced 
in certain circumstances, including in areas designated as rural under s.157 of 
the Housing Act 1985.    South Hams falls within the rural areas designation and 
may therefore choose to adopt a lower threshold of 5 units in the rural areas.  
The designation does not however apply to the 4 main towns of Dartmouth, 
Ivybridge, Kingsbridge and Totnes unless any area of those towns lie within an AONB. 
Where this is the case, the Council may apply the lower threshold of 5 within that 
specific area of the Town.     
 

3. ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

Affordable Housing Contributions  
 
3.1 This announcement is likely to have a range of implications for the delivery of 

housing.  Over the past 3 years the Affordable Housing Team has secured 
approximately £1.6m in financial contributions and 4 affordable homes ‘on site’ 
from developments that under the new national thresholds would not be required 
to provide affordable housing.   If the pattern of development remains the same 
in future years, the new national thresholds could see the Council lose the 
opportunity to secure approximately £500,000 p.a. in contributions to support the 
provision of affordable housing.   

 



 
Other Financial Contributions  

 
3.2 Alongside Affordable Housing, officers have sought to deploy both the DP8 policy 

and the Open Space SPD in securing financial contributions for play and sport 
from smaller development sites.    Over the last three financial years this has 
secured approximately £260,000 for play and sport projects. If the pattern of 
development remains the same in future years, the new national thresholds could 
see the Council lose the opportunity to secure approximately £85,000 p.a. in 
contributions to support the provision of open space, sport and recreation.      

 
3.3  Planning obligations and contributions can still be sought in order to make 

development acceptable.  The statutory tests set out in the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 for these obligations have not been 
changed and Councils will have to continue to demonstrate that the obligation is 
necessary, fair and reasonable and directly related to the development.  The 
Council would wish to continue to secure this provision even where the 
contribution is used to fund infrastructure off site but within the Parish as it 
remains directly related to the development. 

 
3.4 The NPPG describes tariff style obligations as those obligations which seek to 

secure a contribution to pooled funding ‘pots’ intended to provide common types 
of infrastructure for the wider area.  The revised Guidance states that “For sites 
where the threshold applies, planning obligations should not be sought to 
contribute to pooled funding ‘pots’ intended to fund the provision of general 
infrastructure in the wider area”  There is some uncertainty as to the 
circumstances in which the contributions normally secured by the Council for 
example in respect of sport and recreation would be caught by this description 
and the Council is seeking further legal advice.  

 
 Issues / Implications 
 
3.5  Careful consideration is necessary in order to establish how the Council should 

respond to this change and how planning applications to which this guidance 
relates should be determined.  The issues arising include:-  

 
a) Extant unimplemented permissions  

 
Landowners with extant consents may seek to renegotiate the affordable 
housing and other financial obligations of completed s106 Agreements. In 
such cases there may be pressure to reconsider these obligations taking 
account of the new NPPG on thresholds, particularly if the Council amends the 
thresholds in accordance with the guidance.  Enquiries are already being 
made but officers cannot indicate how many applications may be made. 
 
The ability to renegotiate affordable housing obligations was introduced 
through Section 106BA of the 1990 Act (inserted by the Growth and 
Infrastructure Act 2013).  This amendment allows applications to be made to 
modify the affordable housing requirements of any Section 106 agreement 
regardless of when it was signed. This review must be based on economic 
viability and cannot take into account other aspects of the planning consent. It 



addresses affordable housing requirements only.  This legislation has not been 
amended and nor has the NPPG with regard to this point.  The change in 
Guidance relating to thresholds is not retrospective and therefore this 
renegotiation procedure remains the same. 
 
However, in order to circumvent this, Landowners with an extant permission 
for a development which includes affordable housing and other financial 
obligations, either ‘on site’ or through a financial contribution, could submit a 
new application to effectively remove the obligation.  This may lead to a 
number of additional applications coming forward.  
 
Members therefore need to consider whether they wish to support a practice of 
allowing a variation of affordable housing obligations taking account of the 
revised NPPG on thresholds.   Alternatively the Council may continue to 
require each application to modify a s.106 affordable housing obligation to 
be considered on its individual merits in accordance with Section 106BA, 
regardless of the revised NPPG on thresholds.   
 
Officers view is that bearing in mind the legislation has not been amended and 
the value of contributions which are currently the subject of planning 
obligations is significant, the Council should not accept a change to the 
obligations unless the change is demonstrated to be necessary because the 
development would otherwise be economically unviable. 

 

b)  Previously implemented permissions  
 

There is the potential for applications to be made to cancel/remove 
contributions or obligations.  Given that the government’s aim is to bring 
forward development which was being held back by onerous planning 
obligations, it is considered that the new threshold policy should not be applied 
to schemes already built.   

  
c) Thresholds 
 

At the consultation stage the proposal was for a blanket 10 unit threshold. The 
opportunity to seek affordable housing from developments of 6-10 units in the 
rural areas therefore provides a welcome concession. However, when 
considered against the Council’s adopted threshold of 2 dwellings, the reduced 
threshold falls well short of the existing position. Furthermore, the fact that 
sites of 6-10 units can only be required to provide a financial contribution does 
not guarantee the delivery of affordable housing where there is an identified 
need. Provision ‘on site’ remains the most effective and efficient delivery 
mechanism.  

  
The upper threshold applies to developments of 10 units or less, and which 
have a maximum combined gross floor space of no more than 1,000 square 
metres; it should be noted that there is no equivalent floor space threshold 
applicable to the five unit threshold proposed by CLG. On this basis, 
excessively large houses on schemes of five units or less may not be captured 
by the adoption of the lower threshold. Instead it is assumed that authorities 



will have to apply their own reasonable controls in terms of what is appropriate 
in respect of design and an effective and efficient use of land.  

 
d) Timing  

 
The fact that financial contributions for schemes of 6-10 dwellings are not 
payable until after completion weakens the Council’s ability to secure the 
contribution. Currently the Council requires payment of contributions up front 
but typically allows payment prior to occupation in recognition of viability 
issues associated with cash flow.  The payment of contributions prior to 
occupation of the market dwellings avoids the risk of developer insolvency or 
the developer ‘leaving site’ without making payment as required.  The 
Guidance suggests an approach as to how the contributions will be secured 
and officers will need to negotiate an appropriate s.106 mechanism which will 
mitigate the risk.  

  
e) Loopholes  

 
The use of arbitrary numerical thresholds can lead to loopholes which are 
open to exploitation in order to avoid payment of contributions. In the rural 
areas the most obvious risk will be a developer who splits a site into more than 
one planning application in order to avoid an affordable housing contribution. 
In the towns the risk is that developers will submit applications for schemes of 
10 units where a site can reasonably provide more.  A further loophole may be 
where a larger site in the same ownership comes forward in two phases with 
an under-threshold number of dwellings on each phase.  
 
The Council should continue to take a robust approach on the assessment of 
sites and the most efficient use of land; there should be a clear position that 
proposals which are not an efficient use of land (i.e. lower density or split 
sites), should not be supported on the basis that they fail to deliver sustainable 
development.  The Council will therefore continue to assess applications 
consistent with the approach set out in paras. 7.2 and 7.3 of the AH-DPD in 
order to prevent circumvention of site size thresholds.   

 
Planning Policy Considerations  

 
3.6 Department for Communities and Local Governmental (DCLG) officials have 

stated that the Written Ministerial Statement has the status of national planning 
policy and ranks with the National Planning Policy Framework. This stance is one 
that is being debated nationally.    It is the opinion of many within the legal 
profession that Guidance does not have the same weight as either Statute or 
indeed the NPPF.  It has already been noted in this Report that there has been 
no amendment to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
the ability to enter into agreements remains unchanged. However, the Council 
cannot disregard the change in Guidance and would have to demonstrate in 
every case where it did not follow the Guidance that it was able to justify its 
position.  In such circumstances It is not unreasonable to anticipate the Council 
being put to additional expense in the event of an appeal.  
 
 



 
 

3.7  The Development Plan has primacy and Section 34 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires decisions to be based upon 
development plan policies unless material planning considerations indicate 
otherwise. Despite the recent change in national policy, the Council is bound to 
continue to determine applications in line with its development plan, unless 
material planning considerations indicate otherwise.  

 
3.8 Given the new national policy, the Council must consider how it will determine 

applications where the Development Plan would require the provision of 
affordable housing. A decision is required as to whether applications would be 
considered on a case by case basis, refused because affordable housing can no 
longer be required, or approved as market housing.  
 

3.9 The Council may choose to continue to apply its existing adopted policies for the 
time being or adopt the new thresholds during the interim period prior to adopting 
a new Local Plan.   
 
Current Legal Challenges  
 

3.10 In considering the Council’s position, Members should be aware of a legal 
challenge by two Berkshire Councils.  Reading Borough Council and West 
Berkshire Council have jointly applied for a judicial review of the new policy.   The 
Councils have served the claim including grounds of challenge on DCLG and as 
at 1st February are awaiting a response.  

 
3.11  In addition to the above legal challenge, a Private Members Bill has been 

proposed and sponsored by Tim Fallon MP.   The Bill is designed to give local 
planning authorities the power to determine the requirements for affordable 
housing contributions from sites of fewer than 10 units as part of planning 
obligation agreements under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990; and for connected purposes. This Bill was presented to Parliament on 9 
September 2014 and is expected to have its second reading debate on 6 March 
2015. 

 
Options / Proposed Thresholds 

 
3.12 The Ministerial Statement and revised guidance in the NPPG are material 

planning considerations and the Council must have regard to them in respect of 
planning applications where affordable housing or other contributions are sought.  
The intention of the Guidance is to enable development and to ensure that local 
authorities are not placing an undue burden on applicants, particularly in terms of 
viability.    Were the Council to continue with its existing position it would need to 
demonstrate, with evidence in respect of every application, that local 
circumstances justified a different approach.  

 
3.13 Given the suggested weight of the new guidance and the risks associated with 

an appeal, it is recommended that the Council adopt the new national threshold 
guidance.   

 



3.14 It is unclear when the outcome of the legal challenge by Reading Borough 
Council and West Berkshire Council will be known. It seems sensible therefore to 
adopt the new thresholds on an interim basis.   This approach provides the 
opportunity to review the position prior to adopting the new thresholds within the 
new local plan.   

 
4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
4.1 The legal implications have been discussed in the report.  
 
5. FINANCIAL  
 
5.1 Implications include the potential loss of financial contributions from previously 

approved planning applications together with a loss of contributions from future 
planning applications which fall below the proposed new thresholds. The 
potential future loss arising from the new thresholds amounts to an estimated 
£500,000 p.a in respect of affordable housing and £85,000 p.a. in respect of 
open space, sport and recreation 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
6.1 The Risk Management implications are shown at the end of this report in the 

Strategic Risks Template. 
 
7. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

 
Corporate priorities 
engaged: 

Homes, Economy, Health and Wellbeing 

Statutory powers:   
Considerations of equality 
and human rights: 

None. This matter is assessed as part of 
each specific project. 

Biodiversity 
considerations: 

This matter is assessed as part of each 
specific project. 

Sustainability 
considerations: 

This matter is assessed as part of each 
specific project. 

Crime and disorder 
implications: 

None. This matter is assessed as part of 
each specific project. 

Background papers:  
 

None  

Appendices attached:  None  
 
 



 
STRATEGIC RISKS TEMPLATE 

 
 

 
No 

 
Risk Title  

 
Risk/Opportunity 
Description  

Inherent risk status   
Mitigating & Management actions  

 
Ownership  Impact of 

negative 
outcome  

Chance 
of 
negative 
outcome  

Risk 
score and 
direction 
of travel  

1 
 

Retaining 
existing 
thresholds  

Should the Council 
decide to retain its 
existing threshold of 2 
dwellings, there is a 
significant risk of appeal 
which may have financial 
implications.   

4 3 12 ���� 
 

Any planning application which is 
determined in accordance with existing 
thresholds would need to demonstrate 
that it was able to justify its position.  

Affordable 
Housing 
Manager 
Developmen
t Manager, 
Environment 
and 
Recreation 
Manager  

2 Adopting new 
thresholds  

The adoption of the new 
thresholds provides the 
opportunity to secure 
contributions from 
schemes of 6 – 10 units 
in the rural areas.  

2 2 4 ���� 
 

Appropriate assessment of sites will be 
required to ensure new applications 
deliver an efficient use of land and are 
not phased or under developed in order 
to avoid the provision of financial 
contributions.  

Affordable 
Housing 
Manager 
Developmen
t Manager, 
Environment 
and 
Recreation 
Manager 

 

Direction of travel symbols ���� ���� ���� 
 
 
 

 































































































































Report to: Special Council  

Date: 10 September 2015 

Title: Introduction of a Discretionary Local Business Rate 
Relief Discount Policy 

Portfolio Area: Business Development, Strategy & Commissioning  

Cllr Michael Hicks 

Cllr.Hicks@SouthHams.gov.uk 

 

Wards Affected: All 

Relevant Scrutiny  

Committee: 

N/A 

  Approval and clearance 

obtained: 

Yes 

Urgent Decision:  No Date next steps can be taken: 

 

After Special 

Council 10/9/15

  

Author: Darren Arulvasagam,  

Business Development, Group Manager 

 
 

 

01803 861222 / Darren.Arulvasagam@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

Lisa Buckle,  
S151 Office / CoP Lead, Finance 
 

01803 861413 / Lisa.Buckle@swdevon.gov.uk 

 

 

 
 

 

Recommendations:   

That Council be RECOMMENDED to: 

a) offer local businesses discretionary business rate relief where it is in 

the interest of local Council tax payers to do so 

b) ratify a new discretionary business rate relief policy as detailed 
within Appendix one and approve the rate relief application form as 

shown in Appendix two attached to this report 

c) agree the formation of a discretionary business rate relief decision 

panel, who will appraise and determine applications on an as-needs 
basis as set out in paragraph 1.6 of this report 

  



1. Executive summary  

1.1. This report recommends that the Council utilises its powers to 

apply discretionary business rate relief 

1.2. Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 amends Section 47 of the 

Local Government Finance Act 1988 and allows billing authorities 
such as South Hams District Council, to grant discretionary rate 
relief in any circumstances, provided it is in the interests of the 

local Council tax payers to do so 

1.3. The purpose of these new powers is to give billing authorities the 

ability and scope to encourage, sustain and improve local 
economic performance by temporarily lowering the business rate 
burden while local businesses grow and create significant 

additional employment or safeguard jobs within the District 

1.4. Appendix one contains the recommended policy, whilst appendix 

two contains the recommended discretionary rate relief 
application form 

1.5. Members are requested to agree a Discretionary Business Rate 

Relief Policy and Application as attached at Appendices 1 and 2 
together with the formation of a new discretionary business rate 

relief decision panel, who will review and determine applications in 
line with this report and appended policy 

1.6. It is suggested that this panel is formed by three Members: the 
Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee; the Leader of 
the Council, and; the portfolio holder for Business Development.  

Two further Members are to be nominated as substitute panellists, 
in the event that one of the core three cannot attend a review 

panel meeting within a timely manner (or have a conflicting 
declaration of personal interest).  The Deputy Leader of the 
Council and any other member of the Executive are suggested as 

stand-by panellists 

 

(NB. a version of this report will also be considered by the Executive on the 
morning of 10 September 2015). 
 

2. Background  
2.1. In order to stimulate local business growth and retain local 

businesses and jobs within the District, it is proposed that the 
Council applies powers available to it to offer discretionary 
business rate relief, where there is a tangible benefit to local tax 

payers.   
 

The relief will offer growing businesses discretionary financial 
assistance through their growth transition and can help to 
safeguard jobs.  Without a Policy, growing businesses would not 

be able to receive assistance from this billing authority and could 
be attracted by the financial benefits offered by local enterprise 

zones or soft landing policies in other Districts / Boroughs. 
 



2.2. When South Hams receive business rates, it has to pay other 
public bodies a share of the revenue it receives.  50% is returned 

to Central Government; 9% is paid to Devon County Council and 
1% is paid to the Fire Authority.  40% is retained by South Hams. 

   
Offering a discretionary business rate relief will reduce the 
revenue generated by South Hams in the short term and 

consequently reduces the amount payable to these other 
authorities.  This is currently the case with other discretionary 

awards made by the Council, such as non-profit making bodies 
and charitable occupation relief. 
 

2.3. South Hams is not part of the Devon Business Rate Pool for the 
current year.  However, nothing contained within this policy would 

fetter the Council’s ability to re-join the pool in the future. 
 
3. Outcomes/outputs  

3.1. The aim of this policy is to attract, nurture and retain businesses 
within the billing authority and encourage them to expand and 

create more jobs and economic value for the District.  Once in 
place, the policy will help the District compete with other areas 

looking to attract growing businesses. 
 

3.2. It is not possible to forecast the amount of business rate income 

that will be foregone by adopting this policy.  Applications and 
therefore awards will vary according to the type of business 

applying and their individual circumstances and the panel’s 
decision on what level of discount and discount duration to award. 
 

3.3. It is expected that the policy will apply to all premises irrespective 
of ownership. 

 
3.4. The panel will use its discretion to determine discount 

applications, paying due attention to safeguard local businesses, 

including those competing with the discount applicant. 
 

4. Options available and consideration of risk  

4.1. Members could opt to do nothing – however, this could 
realistically result in local businesses opting to move and expand 

their operations outside of the District.  Such a move could result 
in local job losses, vacant property and an eventual reduction in 

business rate revenue. 

 

4.2. Members could facilitate an alternative method of offering local 

businesses financial support to grow and create additional job 
opportunities.  At present no other funding streams or reserves 

are available to small and medium sized businesses other than 
grant applications to the South Devon Coastal Local Action Group 
(SDC LAG) and / or the Greater Dartmoor Local Enterprise Action 

Fund (GD LEAF).  Applications of this type are typically restricted 
to certain business types and for defined purposes.   



 

GDLEAF and SDC LAG can offer one-off grants of £50,000 or less, 

however applications are not currently being accepted due to 
delays experienced by the Rural Payments Agency.  Applications 

are expected to be accepted from October. 
 

5. Proposed Way Forward 

5.1. It is recommended that South Hams District Council Members 
agree to utilise its power to offer local businesses discretionary 

business rate relief where it is in the interest of local Council tax 
payers to do so.  This policy will be used in exceptional 
circumstances at its absolute discretion, where the criteria of the 

policy has been met and the principles of the policy followed. 

5.2. Appendix one sets out the principles and criteria whilst the 

discretionary business rate relief application form is shown in 
appendix two. 

5.3. A discretionary business rate relief decision panel will be formed 

of three Members, with two stand-by substitutes in order facilitate 
a timely decision on applications.   

5.4. The policy and applications will be promoted on an as-needs basis 
to relevant businesses in the locality. 

 
6. Implications  
 

Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  

proposals  
Y/N 

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/ 
Governance 
 

Y The Council has a Discretion under section 69 of the 

Localism Act whether to grant rate relief provided that it 

is in the interests of the local council tax payers, and in 

order to exercise that discretion the Council needs to 

adopt a Policy.  

 

Care must be taken to ensure that any relief awarded 

must not contravene state aid laws.  There is provision 

within the policy principles and criteria to request that 

applicants state all prior state aid assistance and 

evidence to ensure this does not exceed the ‘de minimis’ 

level of €200,000 over three years from any 

Government body / organisation. 

 

The Council must have regard to its fiduciary duty to 

Council tax payers – by awarding temporary relief, 

Council tax payers are in effect subsidising businesses to 

grow.  The policy and principles are based around a 

rapid return on investment, i.e. greater business rate 

returns after the initial relief period. 

Financial 

 

Y Relief will only ever be awarded for a defined time 

period.  Business rate income could reduce in the short 

term as applications are accepted and relief is awarded.  



However, beyond the initial relief period, business rate 

revenue is expected to increase.  Applicants will be 

required to evidence a long lease / freehold to remain in 

the locality in order to apply for the relief.  Clawback 

provisions will be included in the event the business 

were to relocate within a 5 year time period after 

application.   

 

There is a financial impact to awarding rate relief 

discounts under Section 47 of the Local Government 

Finance Act 1988 and the cost to the council is 40% of 

the relief awarded.  Applications will be assessed on a 

case by case basis.  There is no Government support for 

such awards, thereby having a direct impact on the 

taxpayers of the District.  The policy and principles are 

based around a rapid return on investment, i.e. greater 

business rate returns after the initial relief period.   

 

It should be noted that when a business relocates from 

within the District to a new property within the District, 

rates on the former premises (which would then be 

empty) are subject to 100% mandatory relief for 3 

months (extendable to 6 months depending on premises 

type).  This reduces income for the period.  After the 3/6 

months, rate liability reverts to the full amount on the 

former premises. 

Risk Y The policy has been drafted to ensure that it protects 

the interests of local Council tax payers and will only 

help businesses who are intending and in a position to 

grow. 

 

Not having a defined policy could result in the Council 

having to determine discretionary rate relief applications 

without a defined set of criteria or principles and could 

result in unfair and anti-competitive awards. 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 

Equality and 
Diversity 

N/A  

Safeguarding 
 

N/A  

Community 
Safety, Crime 

and Disorder 

N/A  

Health, Safety 

and Wellbeing 

N/A  

Other 

implications 

N/A  

 

 
Please refer to Appendix 1 for the full policy and Appendix 2 for the 

suggested discretionary local business rate relief discount 
Application form.  



 

Process checklist Completed 

Portfolio Holder briefed  Yes 

SLT Rep briefed Yes 

Relevant  Exec Director sign 

off (draft) 

Yes 

Data protection issues 

considered 

Yes 

If exempt information, public 

(part 1) report also drafted. 
(Executive/Hub/Scrutiny) 

n/a 

  



Appendix One: Draft Discretionary Business Rate Relief Policy 

 
Powers to apply discretionary business rate relief 

Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 amends Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 

1988 to allow billing authorities such as South Hams District Council, to grant discretionary 

rate relief in any circumstances, provided it is in the interests of the local Council tax payers 

to do so.  

The purpose of this new power is to give billing authorities the ability and scope to 

encourage, sustain and improve economic performance by having the power to lower the 

business rate burden while businesses grow and create significant additional employment or 

safeguard jobs within the District.  

  

Local Business Rate Relief Discount (LBRRD) Requirements 

The following principles apply when considering LBRRD applications: 

i. The Council will consider the cost of funding the LBRRD and the burden this places on its 

finances 

ii. The LBRRD will support opportunities for new business growth, expansion and 

employment and the safeguarding of jobs within the District and the effect this will have 

on competing local businesses 

iii. If it is reasonable to offer a LBRRD having taken into account the interests of the Council 

tax payers as a whole 

iv. Any LBRRD award will be at the absolute discretion of the billing authority.  The LBRRD 

may be awarded to any property or business of the Councils choosing, at any level 

between 0% and 100%.  For example, 20% or 100% or for companies who are relocating 

within the District, the discount awarded may equal the difference between the old 

premises business rates payable and the new premises business rates payable 

v. Claims for LBRRD cannot be backdated 

vi. The Council reserves the right to withdraw the LBRRD scheme at any time 

vii. Whether the award of a LBRRD may constitute state aid. The total de minimis aid granted 

to any undertaking of any size must not exceed €200,000 over any period of three fiscal 

years from any source.  The onus is on the applicant to provide sufficient evidence to the 

billing authority to confirm that the de minimis level is not and will not be breached.  

Applications which may constitute state aid will not be considered 

   
Criteria for valid LBRRD applications 

Each application will be considered on its individual merits against the criteria set out below: 

1) Does the LBRRD incentivise the creation of new permanent contract, (not zero hour 

contract) jobs for local people (paying living wage as a minimum)? 

2) Will the LBRRD provide a return on investment from higher future rates income? 

3) Are there social or economic implications for the area if the LBRRD is not applied?  

e.g. the loss of a substantial number of jobs or skills from the area  

4) Is the request for temporary relief (LBRRD will not be repeated year after year) 

5) To be considered for an award under this policy the applicant must be either : 

a) A new business starting up in the area 

b) A business relocating to the area 



c) An existing business expanding within the area and creating additional or 

safeguarding existing jobs 

6) The applicant must evidence a minimum remaining lease period of 10 years (or 

ownership of a freehold) 

7) No LBRRD will be awarded for greater than 2 years 

8) No LBRRD will be awarded that would mean the applicant has received a grant / award or 

assistance from a Government body / organisation for a cumulative total of greater than 

€200,000 over three years, in line with State Aid guidelines at the time of writing this 

policy 

9) No LBRRD can be awarded until the applicant has all required permissions, licences, and 

other provisions in place in order to begin lawfully trading from the premises at which the 

rate relief will be applied 

10) In considering an application for a LBRRD, applicants may be asked to provide certain 

information. This may include, but is not limited to, the last two years of financial 

accounts; a business plan, and; evidence of at least three years’ occupation of commercial 

premises 

11) All LBRRD decisions are to be made by the discretionary business rate relief panel within 

four weeks of receipt of a fully completed application form and all requested supporting 

evidence 

12) Any LBRRD awarded will be paid by crediting the business rate account to which it applies 

13) There is no statutory right to appeal against a decision made by the discretionary 

business rate relief panel other than a Judicial Review.  An applicant may make a request 

for the decision panel to review a decision within four weeks of notification of a decision 

but only where either: 

 

a) Additional relevant information that was not available at the time the decision was 

made becomes available, or 

b) There are good grounds to believe the application or supporting information was not 

interpreted correctly at the time the decision was taken 

 

Cases will be reviewed by the same discretionary rate relief panel.  A request for review 

must set out the reasons for the request to review and include the relevant supporting 

information. 

 

14) The applicant must sign a statement of intent to agree to operate the business in the 

District for five years or more. 

15) The Council may at its absolute discretion if (in the Council’s opinion) any of the clawback 

events or termination events listed in Appendix A occur: 

 

a) Suspend the payment of the LBRRD under this Policy for such period as the Council 

shall determine; 

b) Vary the LBRRD payable under this Policy, in which case the payment of funding shall 

thereafter be made in accordance with the written variation notified to the Applicant;  

c) Terminate any agreement to pay the LBRRD under this Policy whereupon the Council 

shall cease to be under any obligation to provide any further LBRRD to the Applicant 

and (in addition) the Council may require the Applicant to repay the whole or any 

part of the LBRRD previously paid to the Applicant and the Applicant agrees that upon 

receipt of written notice requiring repayment the Applicant shall repay the sums 

required within 30 days of receipt of such notice. 

 



Notwithstanding the provisions of Clauses (a) and (b) above, in the event that an 

applicant relocates the business for which the LBRRD is payable to a location outside of 

the District, within a period of five years from the date of the decision to award the 

LBRRD, the Council shall be entitled to recover some or all of the LBRRD on the following 

basis: 

 

The relocation occurs before 5 calendar years have expired beginning with the date of 

the decision, 100% of the LBRRD shall be recoverable, at the Council’s discretion. 

 

APPENDIX A - CLAWBACK AND TERMINATION EVENTS 

 

The following Clawback and Termination Events apply to this Policy: 

 

1. There is any change in the Applicant’s legal status and such a change is likely to 

adversely affect the LBRRD; or 

2. Any claim and/or report submitted by the Applicant does not properly comply with the 

requirements detailed in this Policy; or 

3. Any information supplied by the Applicant under or in connection with the LBRRD 

proves to be materially incorrect or misleading; or 

4. The Applicant does not comply with or observe any condition of this Policy; or 

5. The assistance exceeds European Community State Aid limits to the extent that any 

LBRRD paid should not have been paid or if a decision of the European Commission or 

of the European Court of Justice requires payment to be withheld or recovered; or 

6. There is an unsatisfactory report from the auditors. This will be the case if the auditors 

refer to a fundamental uncertainty, a disagreement or a limitation to their opinion, or if 

the auditors are unable to form an opinion; or if they report that the statement of 

grant does not give a true and fair view; or 

7. There is evidence of irregularity, impropriety or negligence; or 

8. If: 

a. the Applicant, being an individual, an incorporated or an unincorporated body, 

becomes bankrupt, has a receiving order or administration order made against it, 

makes any composition or arrangement for the benefit of creditors, makes any 

conveyance or assignment for the benefit of creditors or purports to do so, or is 

the subject of an application under the Insolvency Act 1986 (or superseding 

legislation) for the sequestration of the Applicants estate or of a trust on behalf 

of the Applicant’s creditors; or 

b. the Applicant, being an unincorporated body is dissolved; or 

c. the Applicant, being an incorporated body passes a resolution that the Applicant 

should be wound up, is ordered by the High Court to be wound up, has an 

administrator appointed by order of the Court, has an administrative receiver 

appointed, or being a company is struck from the register at Companies House. 

  



Appendix Two 

 
Discretionary Local Business Rate Relief Discount Application Form 
Please complete all fields and supply supporting evidence where applicable 

 

Account Reference number:       

Applicant name:       

Contact address:       

      

      Postcode:       

Telephone number:       Mobile number:       

Email Address:       

Address in respect of which application is made:       

      

Description / Type of business:       

How long have you been trading in South Hams?       

Number of staff employed?       Date lease due to expire?       

 

 Reasons why a local business rate relief discount should be awarded 

Please state how the granting of a discount will support opportunities for new business growth, 

expansion and employment within the area: 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 Social or economic implications 

What are the social or economic implications for the District? 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Period and percentage of discount requested 

Please state the period and percentage of discount requested: 

      

 

 Other support 

Please give details of all other state or local authority support the business / organisation is 

receiving or has applied for: (Note, this should include where you have premises in other parts of 

the country and where any business rate reliefs have been awarded)    

      

 

 

 

 

Please declare any de minimis state aid (currently €200,000) received from any source in the last 

three years: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please attach (for the business which will benefit from the Discretionary Local Business Rate 

Relief): 

� The last two years of financial accounts 

� A business plan (including growth forecast) 

� Evidence of at least three years’ occupation of commercial premises 

 

I certify that the particulars given in this application are correct to the best of my knowledge 

and belief.  

Name:       

Position:       

Signature: Date:       

Telephone number:       Email:       

 
The billing authority will aim to make a decision regarding this application within four 

weeks of receipt of all supporting evidence considered necessary to enable the application 

to be considered. 

Please Note: 

� Business rates remain payable whilst any application is being processed 



� Any discount awarded will only be for a defined temporary period 

� You must provide any other supporting evidence deemed necessary as requested by 

the billing authority 

� Incomplete applications will not be considered 

 
Please return this completed form and the required supporting evidence to: 

 

Revenues and Benefits Department 

South Hams District Council 

Follaton House 

Totnes 

TQ9 5NE 

 

Or email to :  Revenues and Benefits Department (details to be provided) 

 


	Agenda
	4 Planning Obligations Thresholds
	Appendix A - Planning Obligations Report
	Appendix B -Planning Obligations Thresholds

	5 Introduction of a Discretionary Local Business Rate Relief Discount Policy

